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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ARVIND SUIT MANUFACTURING PRIVATE LIMITED (PREVIOUSLY
KNOWN AS ARVIND GOODHILL SUIT MANUFACTURING PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
(previously known as Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited) (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Repart, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do $0.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticisms throughout the audit. we also:

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we are also
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responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions.that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individuaily or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We ailso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

€) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A",

g) The provision of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the period ended March 31, 2023.

h)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

ii.

iil.

iv.

V.

The Company has no pending litigations which has an impact on its financial position in its
financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

1 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

‘behalf of the Company (“Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on the audit procedures conducted by us, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any
materiai misstatements.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
declared any dividend during the year.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order,2016 ("The Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies act,2013,we give
in the "Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the
extent applicable.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No, 110417W

ol Joer b

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner

Membership No.100892

UDIN: 23100842 AGx@ K E3-8L32

Ahmedabad
fro-'l 26 2023
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ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited (previously
known as Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited) (“the Company”) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARVIND SUIT
MANUFACTURING PRIVATE LIMITED (previously known as ARVIND GOODHILL
SUIT MANUFACTURING PRIVATE LIMITED) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiai controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reiiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reascnable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operatihg
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We beileve that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of cur infermation and accerding to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417K

o Mo Sr

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
pf?";“ 26, 20 23
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ANNEXURE B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
(previously known as Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited of even date)

(i)

(in)

{iii)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company don‘t have any intangible assets for the year.

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant and Equipment
in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property,
Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the period. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the
Company does not have any immovabie properties (other than properties where the company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee), hence reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the period.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has no proceedings
pending for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
and rules made thereunder.

In respect of the Company’s Inventories:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reascnable
intervals by the management on a quantities of inventory and in our opinion the coverage and
procedure of such verification is appropriate and no material discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records which were 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory based on inventory verification reports shared.

b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees from bank on the basis of security of current assets. Hence reporting
under this clause is not required.

The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Consequently, requirements of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The Company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or made
any investment covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Consequently, requirements of
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our epinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or
any other Tribunal.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance
of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Company’s
product. Consequently, requirement of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory

dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Goods
and

Service Tax, Duty of Customn, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of outstanding statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts payable as
on March 31, 2023 on account of any dispute.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, there were no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the
Company’s Borrowings:

a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The Company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

¢) The Company has not taken any term loans hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

d) The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
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()

(xi)

{xii)

{xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

{(xvi)

{(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

f) The company has not raised foans during the period on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised funds by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
or preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially
or opticnally convertible during the period. Consequently, the requirements of clause (x) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In respect of fraud by the Company or on the Company:

a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the period.

b) There has been no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) As represented to us by the management, there have been no whistle-blower complaints
received during the period by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii) of paragraph 3
of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, and the details have been disclosed as required by the applicable Accounting
Standard 18 Related Party Disclosures.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b} We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
covering the period upto March 31, 2023.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

According to the nature of business, the company is not required to be registered under section
45-IA of Reserve Bank of India, 1934.

The company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year of Rs 811.34 Lakhs. The
Company had Cash Losses in previous financial year of Rs. 592.91 Lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year..

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
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as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We however state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts upto the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all the liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the batance sheet dates will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

(xx) In respect of the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility, reporting under this clause is not
applicable to the company.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, this clause is not applicable to the
Company as it is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417V/\1L

oA Sy

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Ahmedabad
A-P""ri ?"I Lo



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
(Previously known as Arvind Goadhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited) {CIN-U17121G12012PTCO7 1968}
Balance Sheet as at March 21, 2023

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Notes ALl oy
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
I. Non-cutrent assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 1,512.54 3,191.22
{b) Capital Work in Progress 5 93.75 -
(c) Intangible assets & 2.90 5.22
{d) Right of use asset 30 1,527.08 =
{2) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 7 252.24 314.61
{f) Other non-current assats 8 3.18 3.18
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 25 = 131.96
Total non-current assets 3,391.69 3,646.19
II.Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 210.60 468.16
{b) Financial assets
{1} Trade receivakbles 7 204.99 225.49
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 136.13 154.78
(iii} Bank balance other than (ii) abave 7 30.99 38.84
(iv) Cthers financial assets 7 1.57 2.17
(<) Current tax assets (net) 10 75.66 37.61
{d} Other current assets 8 41.87 162.58
Total current assets 701.81 1,090.63
Total Assets 4,093.50 4,736.82
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capitat i1 524.30 524.30
Instruments entirely equity in nature 12 4,500.00 4,500,00
Other eguity 12 {3,513.00) {1,411.74)
Total equity 1,511.30 3,612.56
Liabilities
I. Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Barrowings 13 - 133.14
(1i} Lease Liabilities 30 1,557.08 -
(b) Long-term provisions 14 51.03 71.00
(c) Government grants 15 120.79 151.76
Total mon-current liabilities 1,728.90 395.90
IL.Current liabilities
(a) Financial labifities
{i} Borrowings : 13 = 42,95
{ii) Lease Liability 30 81.67 -
(iii) Trade payables 13
Total outstanding dues of mircro enterprises and B -
small enterprises
thaI outstandl_ng dues of crediters GFher than 373.25 149.75
mircro enterprises angd small enterprises
{iv) Other financial liabilities 13 244.12 404.15
(k) Cther current liabilities 15 53.09 55.76
(¢} Shart-term provisions 14 14.44 2.24
(d) Government grants 15 86.73 73.51
Total current liabilities 853.30 728.36
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,093.50 4,736.82
Summary of significant accounting pclicies S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemants.

As per our report of even date

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. -
Firm Registration No. 110417W

Chartered Accounta

For and on behaif of the board of directors of
Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

ol mﬂ—’!" N, — F>=77 7

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B. Jayesh K Shah

Partner Director
Membership No.100832 DIN: 00008349
Ahmedabad

Date : April 26, 2023

Ashish Kumar
Director

DIN: 06527942



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

{Previously known as Arvind Goodhill $uit Manufacturing Private Limited) (CIN-U17121G32012PTC071968)
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2023

Rs in Lakhs

- Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes  march31.2023  March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations

Sale of Products 17 91.42 358.30

Sale of Services 17 2,227.41 1,530.71

Operating Income 17 21.98 9.17
Revenue from operations 2,340.81 1,898.18
Other income 18 161.59 117.57
Total income {I) 2,502.40 2,015.75
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and accessories consumed 19 36.30 128.51
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 20 205.59 109.29
stock-in-trade
Employee henefits expense 21 1,687.97 1,314.62
Finance costs 22 251.50 238.52
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 1,184.67 1,150.78
Other expensas 24 1,132.38 817.72
Total expenses (II) 4,498.41 3,759.44
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax {I1I1)={I~-
i1} (1,996.01) (1,743.69)
Exceptional items (IV) - =
Profit/(Loss) before tax (V) = (III-IV) (1,996.01) (1,743.69)
Tax expense
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 25 131.96 =
Total tax expense (VI) 131.96 i
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year (VII) = {V-VI) (2,127.97) (1,743.69)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit 26.71 7.43

Income tax effect - -
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 25.71 7.43
subsequent periods : '
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VIII}={A+B) 26.71 7.43
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VII+VIII) {2,101.26) {1,736.26)
Earning per equity share [nominal value per share Rs.10/-]

Basic and Diluted 29 {40.59) (50.91)
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repart of even date
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co,
Firm Registration No. 110417W
Chartered Accm@ants

(N

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner f
Membership No. 100892

—

Ahmedabad
Date : April 26, 2023

Fer and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Jayesh K Shah
Directar
DIN: 00008349

@gu’)’@

Ashish Kumar
Director
DIN:06527942



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
(Previously known as Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited) (CIN-U17121GJ2012PTC071968)
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

Rs in Lakh

Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

A Operating activities

Profit/(Loss) Before taxation (1,996.01) {1,743.69
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation /Amortization 1,184.67 1,150.78
Interest Income {10.32) {14.30)
Interest and Other Borrowing Cast 251.50 238.52
Loss on Sale of PPE 15.15 3.51
Allowance for Daubtfull Debts - B3.86
Gaovernment grants {147.56} (73.51)
1,293.44 1,388.8¢
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (702.57) (354.83
Working Capital Changes:
Changes in Inventories 257.56 221.28
Changes in trade payables 223,50 43.76
Chariges in other current liabilities (2.67) 17.88
Changes in other financial liabilities 35.81 {13.17)
Changes in provisions {34.48) 64,94
Changes in loans and advances = -
Changes in trade receivables 21.50 464,26
Changes in other assets 130.57 127.27
Changes in other financial assets 0.60 (2.08)
Changes in Other Bank Balances 7.85 : (1.83)
Net Changes in Working Capital 6540.24 922.31
Cash Generated from Operations (62.33) 567.48
Direct Taxes paid {(Net of Income Tax refund) (38.05) {24.60
Net Cash from Operating Activities (100.38) 542.88
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of PPE (194.91) -
Sale of PPE 751.87 1.13
Changes in Financial Asset 62.37 47.26
Changes in Government Gants 89.81 52.29
Interest Income 10,92 20.82
Net cash flow from Investing Activities 720.06 121,50
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Payment of Lease {57.85) {158.03)
Issue Of Equity shares - 417.30
Issue of Instruments entirely equity in nature - 4,500.00
Changes in tong term Borrowings (133.14) (52.30)
Changes in short term borrowings = (4,950.90}
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid (447.34) (309.59)
Net Cash flow from Finarcing Activities {638.33) (553.52
Net Encrease/({Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents {18.865) 110.86
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 154.78 43.92
Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the year 136.13 154.78
Amount in Rs
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31 2022

March 31 2021

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: (Note 7¢}
Balances with Banks
Cash and cash aquivalents

136.13
136.13

154.78
154.78

As per our report of even date attached
Foi, Sorab 5. Engineer & Co.
Firm Registration No. 110417W

Chartered Accoungants
a, L -

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

|
Jayesh K Shah

Partner Director
Membership No. 100892 DIN: 00008349
Ahmedabad

Date : April 26, 2023

Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Ashish Kumar
Director
DIN:06527942



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

(Previously known as Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited) (CIN-U17121GJ2012PTC071968)

Statement of changes in Equity for the Year ended March 31, 2023

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Rs in Lakhs
Note 11

As at April 1, 2021 107.00

Issue of Equity Share capital 417.30

As at March 31, 2022 524.30

Issue of Equity Share capital -

As at March 31, 2023 524.30

B. Instuments entirely Equity in Nature

Non Convertible Perpetual Debenture - Unsecured

Particulars Rs in Lakhs
Note 12

As at April 1, 2021 -

Issue during the year 4,500.00

As at March 32, 2022 4,500.00

Issue during the vear -

As at March 31, 2023 4,500.00

C. Other equity

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

Rs in Lakhs

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars Total equit
Securities premium Retained Earnings ey
Note 12 Note 12

Balance as at April 01, 2021 5,145.00 (4,820.48) 324,52
Profit/(Loss) for the yvear = (1,743.69) (1,743.69)
Other comprehensive income for the year 7.43 7.43
Balance as at March 31, 2022 5,145.00 (6,556.74) (1,411.74)
Balance as at April 01, 2022 5,145.00 (6,556.74) (1,411.74)
Profit/(Loss) for the year . - (2,127.97) (2,127.97)
Other comprehensive incorne for the vear 26.71 26.71
Balance as at March 31, 2023 5,145.00 (8,658.00) {3,513.00)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For, Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Firm Registration No. 110417W
Chartered Accountants J(

oyl Lo

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

)

Ahmedabad
Date : April 26, 2023

e /
Jayesh K Shah

Director
DIN: 00008349

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

=

Ashish Kumar
Director
DIN: 06527942



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2032

1. Corporate Information

Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited (Previcusly known as Arvind Goodhill Suit
Manufacturing Private Limited) has set up a project of manufacturing garments.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on April 26, 2023.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation
2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
("Ind AS") as issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
_followings:

+ Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments);

* Share based payments;
= Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;
+ Valuein Use

2.3 Rounding of amounts

The financial statements are presented in Rs in lakhs and all values are rounded to the nearest
Lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 111, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its
financial statements consistently to all the periods presented.

3.1.Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is:
» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle;
» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting peried; or
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» (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
o It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is
not clearly identifiabie, it is assumed to be twelve months.

3.2.Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference between actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date,
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as
at the reporting date.

3.3.Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement of such transaction and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
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items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

3.4.Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and Investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
¢« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.,
¢ lLevel 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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3.5.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such
as asset held for sale.

External valuers are invelved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties.
Invoivement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion
with and approval by the Company's Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, alsc compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

s Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

« Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

» Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date

of transition
¢ Investment properties
¢ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumutated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All cther repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assels which take substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the period till such assets are ready to be put to use,

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet instailed and ready
for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or [oss arising on
derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for Plant and
Machinery other than Lab equipment and Leasehold Improvements.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful [ife, they are
accounted for as separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful
life or over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation on Plant and Machinery is provided on straight line basis over the useful {ives of
the assets as estimated by management hased on internal assessment. The management
estimates the useful lives for Plant & Machinery to be 20 years.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are
different from the useful livas as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act
2013.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the
period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.6.Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.
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3.7.Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the infangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
Software is amortized over management estimate of its useful life of 5 years or License Period
whichever is lower and Patent/Knowhow is amortized over management estimate of its useful

life of 5 years.
3.8.Inventories

Inventories of Raw material, Work-in-progress, Finished goods and Stock-in-trade are valued
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. However, Raw material and other items held for
use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

» Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first
out basis.

* Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour

and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity,
but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.
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+« Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis.

All other inventories of stores, consumables, project material at site are valued at cost. The
stock of waste is valued at net realisable value. Excise duty wherever applicable is provided
on finished goods lying within the factory and bonded warehouse at the end of the year.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.9.Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’'s CGU to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
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would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

3.10.Revenue Recoghnition

1.

2.

3.

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured goods, traded goods and
related services.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer
of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one
year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of
maoney.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of
the following criteria is met:
The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s performance as the Group performs; or
The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or
The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Company and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to

date,
For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products and services are recognised at a time on which the
performance obligation is satisfied except Revenue from real estate property development
where in revenue is recognised over the time from the financial year in which the agreement
to sell or application forms (containing salient terms of agreement to sell) is executed. The
period over which revenue is recognised is based on entity’s right to payment for performance
completed. In determining whether an entity has right to payment, the entity shall consider
whether it would have an enforceable right to demand or retain payment for performance
completed to date if the contract were to be terminated before completion for reasons other
than entity’s failure to perform as per the terms of the contract.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits wili flow to
the Company, the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government. The Company has conciuded that it is the principal in all of its revenue
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arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing
latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Interest income

For ali financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

Profit or loss on sale of Investments

Profit or Loss on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company, and
is determined as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment and
other incidental expenses.

Insurance claims
Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is
reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

3.11.Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are
recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regufation or convention in the market place (reguiar way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

{(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
» Financial assets at amortised cost
» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVTOCI)
» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL)
» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
{(FVTOCI)
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Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amoitised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant toe the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financiai asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured Initially as well
as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified
as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as
at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.
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(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or

- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

{iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabiiities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.



The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original
classification

Revised
classification

Accounting treatment

Amortised cost

FVTPL

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
Cost new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated

based on the new gross carrying amount.
Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amertised cost and
fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR
due to reclassification.

FVOCI

Amortised cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured
as if it had always been measured at amortised
cost.

FVTPL

FVTOCI

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is
required.

FVTOCI

FVTPL

Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date.

(v)Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure;:

» Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

¢ Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢« |Lease receivables under Ind-AS 116

¢« Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and

Ind AS 18

+ Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
« Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simpiified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance

an:

¢« Trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 18, if
they do not contain a significant financing component and




s Trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 18 that
contain a significant financing component, if the Company applies practical
expedient to ignore separation of time value of money.

The application of simplified approach does not reguire the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit iosses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion.of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e« All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance {(or reversal} recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected
in @ separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

« Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an ailowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the
net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

» Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a
provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

¢ Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already
reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its
value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’
in the OCI.
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributabie to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

{ii)Subsequent measurement of financial liahilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

+ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profi{ or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also inciudes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCIL. These gains / losses
are not subseguently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through prefit and loss.

¢ Loans and Borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
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method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance
sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

c) Offsetting of finrancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

3.12.Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.13.Government Grants and Export incentives

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with, When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates
to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are
recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in
a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.
When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is
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regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured
at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as
per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

Export Incentive

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

3.14.Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside Statement of profit and less. Current income tax is recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. Management peritodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

« When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

¢« In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

« When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;
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» In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the
year in which the Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by
way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews such tax credit
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax
includes MAT tax credit.

3.15.Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term
compensated absences, awards, exgratia, performance pay etc. and the same are
recognised in the pericd in which the employee renders the related service,

b) Post-Employment Benefits
(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme,

employees’ state insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined
contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
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paid/payable under such schemes. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes
is recognised during the peried in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii)Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes
are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefii liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
s The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss:
= Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
¢ Net interest expense or income

¢) Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans.
The present value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the
obligation on the net basis.

3.16.Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to orciinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calcutated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

el



3.17.Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of a manufacturing facility for
the production of its goods. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of
expected costs to settle the obligation, to the extent ascertainable, using estimated cash flows
and are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted
at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The
unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed
annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount
rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

3.18.Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company
assesses whether a confract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
(ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements Iincludes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized
at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plius any initial direct costs
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less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset, Right of use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date;

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases
with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application;

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application;

4. Applied the practical expedient fto grandfather the assessment of which
transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.
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4, Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods,

4.1.Estimates and assumption

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that
are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur,

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present
value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as
needed along the vyield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive
credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based,
on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are
based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 27.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgemenis include considerations of inputs such as liguidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 31 for further disclosures.
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Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced
by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts, Estimated irrecoverable
amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical experience.
Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into homogeneous groups and
assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 25.

Intangible assets
Refer Note 3.7 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of
Intangible assets has been disclosed in Note 6.

Property, plant and equipment
Refer Note 3.5 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying
value of Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6 : Intangible assets

Rs in Lakhs
Intangible assets Computer Software Total
Gross Carrying Amount
As at April 1, 2021 42.18 42.18
Additions = =
Deductions =
As at March 31, 2022 42.18 42.18
Additions = S
Deductions - -
As at March 31, 2023 42.18 42.18
Amortisation and Impairment
As at April 1, 2021 34.45 34.45
Amortisation 2.51 2.51
Deductions = =
As at March 31, 2022 36.96 36.96
Amortisation 2.32 2.32
Deductions - =
As at March 31, 2023 39.28 39.28
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2023 2.90 2.90
As at March 31, 2022 5.22 5.22
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Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Note ? ¢ Financlal assets

Total financial assats

Farelgn exchange forward cantracts (Cash flow hedoa)

Forelgn exchange forward contracts, destanated as cash flow hedaes te hedae hiahly probable future purchases / sales in

farelgn currency are at fair value tirouqh other comprehensive incoma (FYOCT) and chanae in the fair value are racganisad in

ather comprehensive meome.

St

7 {a) Trade receivables Rs in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Currant
Unsecured, censidered good 204,59 226.49
Slenificant Increase in Credit Risic
Credit Impaired 83.86 B3.86
Legs : Alfowanca for doubtfuf debts (83,86} (83.85}
Total Frada and other raceivables 204,99 226.49
Trade receivables are nen-interest bearing and are eenerally on terms of 0 to 90 davs.
Trade Raceivables are niven as security for berrowinas as discinsed under Note-13{s}
7 {b} Allowance for dewbtful dabts
Company has provided allowance for doubtful debts hased on the |ifetime expected credit loss mode! using provision matrix.
Movement In allowance For daubtful debt @ Rs in Lakhs
Particulars As at Asg at
March 31: 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at tha baginning of tha year 83,836,366 -
Add : Alloveance for tha year (Note 243 0 83,865,366
Less : Write off of had debts (net of recovery) =
Balance at tha and of kthe yvear 83,86,366 83,686,365
7 (¢} Trade recelvablas agalng
Schedula:
As at 31. 2023 Rs in Lakhs
P Unhitlad e wing periods from dus dateof el
ulars
b Dues e Less "‘u""‘ L & Months - 1 year 1-2 yeats 2-3 yoars More than 3 yaars
Undisputed Trade receivables - o - Q.32 204.66 204.99
Considered Goad
Undisputed Trade recgivables - B3.88 B3.86
credit impaired
Total = - - B 0.33 288.52 =) 288.85
As at March 3120232 Rs in Lakhs
Unbliled wina periods from due date of
rilcalars Total
= Dues Setdus Lass ";;' ] 6 Months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mors tiat 3 yaars
Undisputed Trade recalvables - 21.83 - 204.66 226.49
Considered Good
Undisputed Trade recejvables - B3.86 B3.85
credit impaired,
Total - 21.83 - - 288.52 - - 310.35
7 (c) Cash and cash
Particulars As at As 5t
Mapch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balanca with Bank
Cumrent accounts and debit balance In cash credit accounts 13613 154.78
Cash on hand 5
Total cash and cash equivalants 136.13 154,78
7 {d) Other bank balance Rs in Lakhs
Parkicefars As at AS It
March 31, 2023 HMarch 31.E 2022
Deposit with original maturity of more
than 3 months but less than 12 30.89 38.84
Total other bank balances 30.8% 38.84
*under ken with bank as Security for Guaranlee fachity
7 (e) Other financlal agsets Rs in Lakhs
Particulars As at As ak
March 331, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecursd, considered good
Non-current B
Security deposits
To Others 105.96 105.96
Bank deposits with maturity of mare than 12 months 146.28 208.63
252.29 314.61
Current
Income recelvable 157 2.17
1.57 2.17
253.81 316.78




7 (f} Flnancial assets by cat Rs in Lakhs

Particulars FVTPL FVOCIT Amorti cos
Mar 31st, 2023 o

Trade recaivables - 204.89
Cash & bank balance - 136,13
Other financisl sssets 2 284.80
Total Financlal assets = 625.92
Mar 31st, 2022

Trade receivables = 226.49
Cash & bank balance - 155,78
Othar financial assets = 355.62
Total Financial assets - 736.89

For Financtal instruments risk management obiectives and poficies, refer Mote 23.
Fair valug disclosures for financial zssets and fabllfties are in Mote 31 and fair valoe hierarchy disclosyres are in Note 32.

Mota 8 : Other currant / non-current assats

Rs in Lakhs
As at As at
Paticniers March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Non-current
Capital advances 3.18 3.18
318 318
Currant
Advance to suonliers
To Others 33.52 35.07
Sales tan/VAT/ Cenvat Receivable, GST, ete 111 93.80
Export incentive recalvable = 28.00
Prepaid expenses 7.23 5.68
Othar Current Asset = 0.03
41.87 162,58
Total 45.05 1635.76
QOther current assets are aiven as security for borrowings as disclosed under Nate-13(a)
HNota 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net raalisable vatua)
Rs 1n Lakhs
As at As at
Earttcuinry March 21, 2023 March 31, 2022
Raw materials : 14.46 47.30
Accassories = 11.20
Fuel 0.52 0.57
Work-In-progress - 20.76
Finished qoads 185.20 370.63
Stores and spares 5.82 17.70
Total 210.60 458,16
Inventories are hypothecated as securlty for borrowings as disclosed under Note 13(a)
Note 10 : Current Tax Assets [Net)
Rs in Lakhs
Particelars As at As at
March31,2023  March31,2022
Tax Paid in Advance {Met of Provision} 75.66 37.61

Total 75.66 37.61




Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 : Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars No.of shares  Rsin Lakhs _ No. of shares _Rs in Lakhs

Authorised share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 10,000,000 1,000.00 10,000,000 1,000.00
Issued and subscribed share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 5,243,000 524.30 5,243,000 524.30
Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 5,243,000 524.30 5,243,000 524.30
Total 5,243,000 524.30 5,243,000 524.30

11.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

Phticilare As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,.2022
No. of shares _ Rs in Lakhs  No. of shares __Rs in Lakhs
At the beginning of the period 5,243,000 524.30 1,070,000 107.00
Add :Shares issued during the year - - 4,173,000 417.30
Outstanding at the end of the period 5,243,000 524.30 5,243,000 524.30

11.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to
their shareholding.

11.3. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares and Shareholding of Promoters.

\ 4 Y

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
f
Name of the Shareholder No ofshares % of : No. of shares % of :
shareholding shareholding
Arvind Sports Fashion Private Limited 5,243,000 100.00 545,700 10.41
Arvind Limited = = 4,173,000 79.59
Goodhill Corporation (Japan)- Asscoiate Company - - 310,300 5.92
F-One Limited (Japan)- Associate Company - - 214,000 4.08

11.5 Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 34



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 12 : Other Equity

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 12.1 Instrument entirely Equity in Nature
Mon Convertible Perpetual Debenture - Unsecured

Balance as per last financial statements 4,500.00 B
Issued During the year (Refer Note 1) - 4,50C.00
Balance at the end of the year 4,500.00 4,500.00
Total Instrument entirely Equity in Nature 4,500.00 4500.00
Note 12.2 Reserves & Surplus
Securities premium account
Balance as per last financial statements 5,145.00 5,145.00
Balance at the end of the year 5,145.00 5,145.00
Surplus in statemant of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements (6,556.74) (4,820.48)
Adjustment due to IND AS 116 a
Profit/(Laoss) for the year (2,127.97) (1,743.69)
QCI for the year 26,71 /.43
Batance at the end of the year {8,658.00) {6,556.74)
Total reserves & surplus {3,513.00) {1,411.74)
Total Other equity 987.00 3,088.26

Note 1 : During the year company have issued non-convertible perpetual debertures {(NCD) of Rs.45,00,00,000 at par,
The NCD are issued at B% coupon rate which is payable at the discretion of issuer. These securities are perpetual
in nature and are callable enfy at the option of issuer. This Debentures are unsecured

Mote 13 ; Financial liabilities

13 {a) Long-term Borrowings

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Long-term Borrowings {(Note a )
Non-current portion
Secured
Term loan from Banks - 133.14
- 133.14
Current maturities
Secured
Term loan from Banks = 42,95
= 42.95
Total long-term borrowings - 133.14
Short-term Borrowings
Secured
Waorking Capital Loans repayabie on demand = =
from Banks
Current matarities of Long-Term borrowings - 42.95
Unsecured
Intercorporate Deposits
From Related Parties = 2
Total short-term borrowings . - 42.95
Total borrowings - 176.09
a All necessary registration of charges or satisfaction are reqistered with ROC within the statutory period expect for following loans
Particulars Rs in Lakhs Status
State Bank of India - Term Loan 567.00 Charge satisfaction filling in process




b

Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes %o the Financial Statements
13 (b} Trade payable

. As at As at
Rarticulars| March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current

Other trade payable {Refer note below) 373.25 149,75

373.25 149,75
Total 373.25 149.75

Based on the information available, the disclosures as required under section 22 of the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprise Small Enterprise Development (MSMED} Act,
2006 are presented as follows :

Particulars As at March 31 2023* As at March 31 2022
{a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at
the end of each accounting year:

i) Principal

i} Interast

{b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Mediurm Enterprises -
(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of deiay in making payment {which has been paid but =
(d} the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

{e]) the ameunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the =

* The Company has not received any intimation from suppliers for the financial year ended March 31,2023 regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006. J

Trade Pavables aaeina schedule:
_As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Not dus Outstanding for following perieds from due date of Payment Tatal
Lass than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

MSME B - - - -

Others 304.25 53.00 = 373.25

Disputed dues - MSME - . = o
Disbuted dues - Qthers - - = R
Urtbilled dues - = 3 =
Total = 304.25 ] 62.00 = 373.25

As at March 31. 2022

Particulars Not dus Qutstanding for following periods from due date of Payment Total
Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years
MSME - - = = =
Others 12.85 58.22 60.59 i8.07 > 149.73
Bisputed dues - MSME - - = - : - -
Disputed dues - Others = - o o - -
Unbilled dues _
Total 13 58.22 60,59 1B.07 = 149.73
13 (c) Other financial liabilities
: As at Ag at
Bartlculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Interest accrued but not due = 195.84
Payable to employees 244,12 208.31
Total 244.12 404.15




Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

13 (d) Financial liabilities by category Rupees
Particulars FYTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
March 31, 2023
Trade payabie o] - 373.25
Payable ko employees = = 244.12
Total Financial liabilities - - 617.37
March 31, 2022
Borrewings - = 133,14
Trade payahle - - 149.75
Current maturity of long term borrowings - = 42.95
Interest accrued but not due = = 195.84
Payable to employees = 2 208.31
- H 729,98

Tatal Financial liabilitias

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 33.
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 31 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 32.

MNote 14 : Provisions

b As at As at
Papticulans March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Long-term
Provision for employee henefits (refer Nota 27)

Pravision for leave encashment 22.75 22.47

Provision for gratuity 28.28 48.53

51.03 71.00
Shart-term
Provision for employee benefits {refer Note 27)
Provisicn for leave encashment 14.44 2.24
Provision for gratuity = -
14.44 2.24
Total 65.47 73.24
Note 15 : Government grant

- As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Nen-current

Deferred income 120.79 i91.76

120.79 191.76
Current
Deferred income 86.73 73.51
86.73 73.51
Total 207.52 265.27

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies attached to these grants as at March 31st.

Government grant

o As at As at
Earticulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
As at April 1 265.28 286.49
Received during the year 89.80 52.30
Released to statement of profit and loss (147.56) (73.51)
207.52 265.28 =

Balance

Note 16 : Other current

As at Dec 31 2022 As at March 31 2022

Particutars Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.
Current
Advance from customers 6.78 11,77
Statutory dues including orovident fund 36.60 34.92
and tax deducted at source
Other Habilities 9.71 9.07
Total 53.09 55.76

Melo’



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 17 : Revenue from operations

Rs in Lakhs

Year ended

Year ended

RO March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Sale of products 91.42 358.30
Sale of services 2,227.41 1,530.71
Operating income
Waste sale 22.00 43.34
Export incentives - 4.42
Exchange Difference (Net) (0.02) (38.59)
21.98 9.17
Total 2,340.81 1,898.18
Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers .
Revenue based on Geography Rs in Lakhs
Pardiars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Domestic 2,340.81 1,886.21
Export - 11.97
Revenue from Operations 2,340.81 1,898.18
Revenue based on business segment Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Garments 113.40 367.47
Services 2,227.41 1,530.71
Revenue from Operations 2,340.81 1,898.18
Reconciliation of revenue from operation with contract price
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from contract with customers as per the contract price 2,340.81 1,898.19
Adjustment made to contract price on account of:
a) Discounts and Rebates = -
b) Sales Return = -
Revenue from Operations 2,340.81 1,898.19
Note 18 : Other income
Rs in Lakhs
5 Year ended Year ended
s March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income 10.32 14.30
Government grants 147.56 73.51
Miscellaneous income 3.71 14.76
Rent Waiver = 15.00
Total 161.59 117.57

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants as at March 31, 2023,



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 19 : Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Rs in Lakhs

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Stock at the beginning of the year
Add : Purchases

Less : Inventory at the end of the year
Raw materials and components consumed

Total

58.50 164.57
(7.74) 22.44
50.76 187.01
14.46 58.50
36.30 128.51
36.30 128.51

Note 20 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Rs in Lakhs

Particulars

- Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Stock at the end of the year

Finished goods 185.80 370.63
Work-~in-Progress = 20.76
185.80 391.39
Stock at the beginning of the year
Finished gocds 370.63 489.90
Work-in-Progress 20.76 10.78
391.39 500.68
{Increase) / Decrease in stocks 205.59 109.29
Total 205.59 109.29
202.40
3.19
Note 21 : Employee benefits expense
Rs in Lakhs
3 Year ended Year ended
B e March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, etc. (Refer Note 27) 1,559.50 1,186.91
Contribution to provident and other funds 120.32 . 112.01
Welfare and training expenses 8.15 15.70
Total 1,687.97 1,314.62
Note 22 : Finance costs
Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expense - Loans 8.71 : 15.85
Interest expense - others 98.14 215.70
Interest on Lease 144.65 6.97
251.50 238.52

Total




Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 23 : Depreciation and amortization expense

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation on PPE (Refer Note 5) 1,182.35 1,148.27
Amortization on Intangible assets {Refer Note 6) 2.32 2.51
Total 1,184.67 1,150.78
Note 24 : Other expenses
Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 = March 31, 2022
Power and fuel 119.36 140.87
Stores consumed 34.29 29.81
Insurance 8.68 13.13
Processing charges 239.72 334.56
Printing, stationery & communication 4,21 3.11
Rent (Refer Note 30) 4,15 -
Repairs : -
To Building 0.25 0.10
To Machineries (including spares consumption) 47.91 48.32
To others 1.30 13.22
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 0.04 5.63
Legal & Professional charges 7.62 26.61
Conveyance & Travelling expense 10.26 6.33
Secutiv Expenses 18.24 22.73
Housekeeping Expenses 21.27 25.42
Miscellaneous Labour charges 8.89 2.70
Allowance for doubtful debts - 83.86
Loss on Sale of PPE 15.15 3.51
Bad debt written off 1.85 =
Bank charges 3.30 2.63
Auditor's remuneration 7.19 5.00
Product Development Exp. 315.50 -
Rates & Taxes 165.16 =
Miscellaneous expenses 97.94 50.18
Total 1,132.38 817.72
Payment to Auditors {Net of tax)
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Payment to Auditors as

Auditors 4.09 4.00
For tax audit 0.80 1.00
For GST audit 1.62 =
For Certification 0.68 =
Total 7.19 5.00

Shete



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 25 : Income tax
The major compaonent of income tax expense

Rs in Lakhs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax
Current tax

Deferred tax

Deferted tax charge/{credit) 131.96 -
Income tax expense reporied in the statement of profit and loss 131.96 -
OCI section
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Statement to Other comprehensive income {0CI)

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
net loss/{gain} on actuatial gains and losses

Net gains / (loss) on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge

Deferred tax charged to OCX

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting prefit multiplied by domestic fax rate

A) Current tax

& Year ended Year ended
Prricel March 31,2023 __ March 31, 2022
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations (1,996) {1,744)
Tax @ 26% {519) {453)
Adjustment
Non recognition/Reversal of Deferred Taxes assets due to uncertainity of recovery 651 453
At the effective income tax rate of Nil (March 31, 2022 : Nil) 0% Q%

B} Defarred tax

Rs in Lakhs

Particulars

Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit and Loss and QCI

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes
Expenditure allowable on payment basis
Allowance for doubtful debt

Adjustment on agceunt of Ind AS 116
Others

= 1,31,96,272

{1,31,96,272} =

Unsued kax credit available

pDeferred tax expense/(income}

Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) - 1,31,96,272 {1,31,96,272) -

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows

Deferred tax assets 1,31,96,272

Deferred tax liabilities =

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets net 1,31,96,272

Rs in Lakhs

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / Year ended Year ended

(llabliies), pat March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Opening balance as of April 1st 131.9¢ 131.96

Tax inceme/(expense) during the peried (131.96) _

recognised in profit or [oss '

Tax income/(expense) during the peried

recognised in OCI = -
- 131.96

Closing balance as on March 31st

The Company has unused carried forward losses of Rs. 9403.99 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 8,535.06 Lakhs), tax credits on losses
have not been recognized on the basis that recovery is not probable in the foreseeable future.

j‘be.ﬁa'
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Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statermnents

Note 27 : Disclosure pursuant to Emplovee beneafits

A. Defined contrfbution planw:

Amount of Rs. 120.32 Lakhs (March 31 2022: Rs. 98.74 Lakhs ) is recognised zs expenses and incuded 1n Note No. 21 "Emplavee banefit expense”
The Company has recoqnised the following amounts in the financial statement for Defined Contribution Plans:

Rs in Lakhs
Empluyee State Insurance 31.25 29.42
Contrigutory to Previdant and Pension Scherme 89.07 62.32
120.32 98.74

B. Defined benefit plans:

The Company has follewina post emaleyment bensfits which are In the nature of defined benefit plans:

(a) Gratuity {(Unfunded?)

The Company operates gratulty plan wherein every employee is entited to the banefit as per scheme of the Company, for each completed year of service. The same is pavable on retirement or termninatisn
whichever Is earlier. The benefit vests oniy after five vears of continuaus service,

March 31, 2023 : Changes in defined benefit obligation and pfan assets Rs in Lakhs
Gratuity cost charged ta statement of profit Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other fncome
Service cost Net interest Sub-total Beneafit paid Retumn on pian Actuartal Actuarizl Exparzence Sub-tetal Contribut  March 31, 2022
expense included in assets (excluding changes ariting  changes. adjustments included in  fony by
AprH %, 2022 statement amounts included  from changes  arsing from oCI employer
of profit and in net interest  in demographic  changes In
logs (Nota expense) assumptions financial
21) assumptions

Gratuity

Defined benafit ohliga 48.53 28.26 347 31.73 (25.27) - {13,82) 2.83% (16.54) (26.71) - 28.28

Fair value of plan asse - - - - - - - - - a - -
Benefit ifabillty 48.53 28.26 3.47 3173 (2620 - 13.02] 2.85 [18.54) {26.71) ~ 28.38
March 31, 2023 . Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets Rs in Lakhs

Gratuity cost to of profit gains/{lesses) In ather comprahenstve Income
Service cost Net interest Sub-total Benefit paid Rezbura on plan Actuariaf Actuaria Experience Sub-total Contribut  March 31, 2022
expense induded in assets {excluding changes arising changes adjustments included in fons by
Apyil 1, 2021 statement amoents included frem changes  arising front aci employer
of profit and in net interest i demograpilc  changes [n
loss (Note
21) assumptions

Gratuity

Defned banefit obliga 56.63 25.65 3.88 29.53 {30.20) = {Q.02} (1.33) (6.08) (7.4 = 48.53

Fair valze of plan asse = - - - - E - - - hd - -
Benefit liability 56.63 25.65 3.88 29,53 €30.20% S {G.02} {1.33) (6.08) (7.43) =] 48.53




Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes ta the Financial Statements
The major categorles of plan assats of the Fair value of the total plan assets of Gratulty are as foilows:

Particulars Yoar ended Marc| - 'ear ended Mardl L,
(%I of tobaf Elan assets I%! of botal glan assets

Central Government Securities NA NA

Public Sector/Financial Instibutional Bends A NA

Portfolio with Mutual Fund NA NA

Others (including bank bajances) WA 94

(%) of total plan assets -

The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown helow:

Y=ar ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars
Discount rate 7.15% 6.86%
Fuature salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Medical cost inflation HA HA
Expected rate of return on plan assets NA HA
Attrition rate 7.00% 7.00%
Indian assured lives Indian assured lives
Morality rate during emplayment Martality(2012-14) (Urban) Mortality{2006-08)
Morality rate after employment NA. N.A.

A guantitative sensltivity analysis for siqnificant assumption is a5 shown below:

Gratulty Rs in Lakhs
increasa f (dan’un! in defined benafit nll!l!allnn {Impact)

Particulars Sensitivity Year £nded March 31, 2023 Year anded March 31, 2022

level Rs in Lakhs R in Lakhs
Gratuity

Discount rate 1% increase (0.63) (4.14)

1% decrease 0,67 4.85

Salary increase 1% increase 0.65 4,90
1% decrease {0.62} (4,26}

Attrition rate 1% increase (0.48) 0.18

1% decrease 0.49 {0.29)

The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan :

Partlculars Bar ended March 31, Year am Mar: 1,
A Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
SRRl S
Gratuity
Within the next 12
months {next annual
reperting period) 6.88 281
Batwaen 2 and & years 19.47 13.61
Beyond 5 years 7.82 96.65
Total d payments 3417 112.07
Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation {based on discounted cash flows)
- Year ended March 31, 2023 Yeéar endad March 31, 2022
Particulars
Years Years
Gratuity K] 11
The followlngs are the expected contributions to pianned assats for the next year:
S Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
[agieltty Amount in #s. Amount In Rs.

Gratuity . E =

C. Other Lona term amployvea benefit plans
Leave ancashment
Amount of Rs. 2.85 Lakhs {March 31, 2022: Rs. 4.20 Lakhs} Is recognised as expenses and included In Hote No. 21 "Employee benefit expense”

The Code on Social Security, 2020 {'Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Indlan
Parlfament approvat and Presidenttaj assent n September 2020. The Code hes been published in the Gazette of Indla. However, the date on which
the Code will come into effect as not heen notlfied. The Company will assess the Impact of the Code when |t comes into effect and will record any
related Impact in the period the Code hecames

effective.

Beto:



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 28 : Reiated Parly Disclosure
As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (IND AS 24), the related parties of the Company are as follows :

Name of Related Parties and Nature of Reiationship :

a

1 Arvind Limited Helding Company upto 26th March 2021

2 Arvind Sports Fashion Private Limited Hotding Company from 26th March 2021

3 Arving OG Nonwovens Pt Ltd Fellow Subsidiary Company

4 Arvind Fashion Limited Enterprise over which Xey Management Personnel are
able to exercise significant influence

5 Asvind Envisol Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company

& Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited Enterprise aver which Key Management Personnel are
able to exercise significant influence

7 Arvind True Blue Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company

8 Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel are
able to exercise significant influence

9 Goedhili Corporation Associate Company

10 F-One Limited Associate Company

Note: Related party relatianship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
b Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions :

Rs in Lakhs
Nature of Transactions ‘liar oL 2 B endedzz
March 331, 202 —_March 31,2022

Processing Income

Arvind Limited 2,227.41 1,773.80
Sales

Arvind Limited 46.09 0.37

Arvind Smart Textiles Limited 0.54 =
Interest Expense

Arvind Envisel Limited - 168.68

Arvind OG Nonwovens Pvt Ltd - 47.63
Purchase

Arvind Limited = 0.07
Expenses

Arvind Limited - Processing Changes 315.50 -

Arvind Limited - Manpower Servcies 300.00 -
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Arvingd Limited 101.16 S
NCD Recelved

Arvind Limited 4,500.00
ICD Received

Arvind Envisol =
ICD Paid

Arvind Envisol Limited 4,950.90
Issue of Equity Shares

Arvind Limited 417.30
Outstanding
Receivable in respect of Current Assets

Arvind Limited 2,79 19.68

Arvind Fashion Limited
Payable in respect of Current Liabilities

Arvind Envisol Limted - 151.81

Arvind Envisol (CAPEX) = =

Arvind OG = 42.87

Arvind PD 9,21 9.21

Goodhill Corporation 2.79 2.79

Arvind Limited 74.66 =

el



]

Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 29 : Earning per share

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Earing per share (Basic and Diluted)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders

Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares
For basic EPS
For diluted EPS

Nominal value of equity shares

Basic earning per share

Diluted earning per share

Weighted average number of equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic
EPS

Rs in Lakhs

Rs
Rs
Rs

(2,127.97)

52,43,000

52,43,000
52,43,000
10
(40.59}
(40.59)

52,43,000

(1,743.69)
52,43,000

34,25,173
34,25,173

: 10

{50.91)

(50.91)

34,25,173

Note 30 : Lease Rent

The Company has taken Factory on lease period of 1 to 9 years with option of renewal. Disclosures as per Ind AS

116 - Leases are as follows:

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (Building) Rs in Lakhs
- Year Ended Year Ended
Ealtulats March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Recognition at the beginning of the year B 92.82
Additions 1,696.60 =
Deletions - -
Depreciation {169.52) (92.82)
Balance at the end of the period/year 1,527.08 -
Movement in lease liabilities Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Recognition at the beginning of the year — 173.03
Additions 1,696.60 =
Deletions -
Finance cost accrued during the year 144.65 6.97
Rent Waiver N (15.00)
Payment of lease labilities {(202.50) (165.00)
Balance at the end of the period/year 1,638.75 -
Contractual maturities of lease liabilities Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Less than one year 220.50 =
Two to Five years 997.90 =
More than five years 1,212.96 o
Total 2,431.36 -
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Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements

Note 35 : Operating segment

The Cempany's business activity falls within a single primary business segment of manufacture of garments.
Accordingly the Company is a single segment company in accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment”.

Further, no single customer contributes te more than 10% of the company's revenue.

Geographical segment
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Seqment Revenue*
a) In Ingia 2,340.81 1,8856.21
b} Rest of the worid i 11.97
Total Saies 2,340.81 1,898.18
Carrving Cost of Seament Assets*#*
a} In India 4,093.50 4,736.82
by Rest of the world
Total 4,093.50 4,736.82
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets**@
2) In India ) 3,139.45 3,199.62
b) Rest of the worid
Total 3,139.45 3,199.62

* Based on {ecation of Customers
*#* Based on location of Assets
@ Excluding Financial Assets and deferred tax asset.

Note 36: New Accounting Pronouncements to be adopted after March 31, 2023

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s
financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if apglicable, as and when
they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) has notified certain amendments to Ind AS, through
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on March 31, 2023. The amendments have been
made in the following standards:

Ind AS 1

Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace the term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information” and providing guidance relating to immaterial transactions, disclosure of entity specific
transactions and more.

Ind AS 8
Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the definition of accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.”

Ind AS 12
Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exempticn of deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction.

Other Amendments

Ind AS 102 - Share based Payments, Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations, Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, Ind
AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers which are mainly editerial in nature in arder to provide better
clarification of the respective Ind AS's.

Note 37 : Other Notes

a. Durlng the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company has not advanced or foaned or invested
funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or kind of funds) to any cther perscn(s) or entity(ies), including
forelgn entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Intermediary shail:

i} directly or indirectly iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or )
ii) previde any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Further, during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company has not received any fund from
any persen(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise} that the Company shall:

1) directly er indirectly lend or Invest ir other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf

af the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
i) provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

b. The Company has not invested or traded in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended March 31,
2023 (Previous year: Nil).

¢. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder during the year ended March 31, 2023 (Pravious
year: Nil}.

d. The Company has not heen declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority during the year ended March 31, 2023 {Previous year: Nil}.

e. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts
in the course of tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961) during the year ended March 31, 2023 (Previous year: Nil).

f. The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or section 560 cof the Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended March 31, 2023 (Previous year: Nil).

Note 38: Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified
Figures of the earlier year have been regrouped to conform with those of current year.

Note 39: Events occurring after the reporting period

The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but
prior to the approval of financial statements to determine the necesslty for recognitlon andfor
reparting of subsequent events and transactions In the financial statements. As of May 6, 202¢t, there
were no subsequent events and transactions to be recognized or reported that are not already
disclosed.

e Co-



Arvind Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements

Note 40 : Ratio Analysts UQM For tha year ended| For tha yaar andad| % Varianca Reason for Variance
31st March, 2023 | I1st March, 2022

i} Curvent Ratio :

Current Assets (@) As in Lakhs 701.81 1.090.63

Cusrent Llabilities rbl Rs in Lakhs 853.30 728.36 )

Cutrent Ratlo {asb} Times a.82 1.50 -82%| Repayment of Intercompany borrowing

it Debt-Eaguity Ratlo:

Debt 2} Rs in Lakhs 3 176

Eauity (b} RS In Lakhs 1.511 3,613

Debt - Eaultv Ratio fa/b) % X 4.9% -| Repayment of Tarm borrowing

ili1 Dabt Sarvica coveraoa Ratlo :

Earninas availabie for Debt services (a) Rs in Lakhs {544.69) (350.88)

Interest + Installments {b} Rs in Lakhs 309.35 439.50 Aeceqnition of Lease llabilities and related

Debt Service coveraae Ratie (a/b) % (L.780 (0.80Y 55%| finance charges

i¥] Return on Eaultv Ratlo ©

Loss after Taxes Rs In Lakhs (2,128} (1,744}

Eauity {£) Rs in Lakhs 524 315

Retumn on Eguity Ratio (a/b) % 4.06 (5,521 -36%) Due to higher loss during the periad

v) Inventorv Turnover Ratlo :

Cast of Gaads Sold/Sale of aoods {a) Rs in Lakhs 91 asa

Averaas Inventory (D) Rs in Lakhs 289 446

Inventorv Turnover Ratio {a/b) Times 0.32 0.80 -154%| Due to provisicn of slowmoving Inventory

vi) Trade Recelvables tumaover Ratlo ;

Annyal net Credit Safes {a) s In Lakhs 2.340.81 1.898.18

Averace Accounts Receivable (i) Rs in Lakhs 215.74 500.55 Pue to reduction in receivable days in

Trade Recaivables turnover Ratio fa/b) Times 10.85 3.79 65%|current yaar

vii} Tradu Pavables tumover Ratlo :

Costs {a} Rs In Lakhs 1.374 1.056

Averaae Accounts Pavable (b} Rs in Lakhs 262 123 Bue ta increase in Payable days in

Trade Pavables turnover Ratio ¢a/bl Times 5.26 8.25 -57%|current year

vii) Net Capltal turmover Ratlo :

Net Sales (a) Rs in Lekhs 2341 1.898

Werking Capital () Rs in Lekhs 151} 362 .

Nat Capital tumover Ratio fafbd W -1545.15% 523.97% 134% | Due to recognition of lease liability

i} Net Profit Ratio «

Profit / {Loss) after Tax {al Rs in Lakhs (1.995.01) (1.743.69)

Net Sales () Rs In Lakhs 2.340.81 1.898.18

Met Profit Ratlo fash) % -85% -92% -B%)|

%1 Ratum on Capital Emotoved (ROCE) :

Earninng before Interest and Taxes (a) Rs in Lakhs (1.745) {1.505)

Capltal Emploved (b1 Rsin lakhs 511 3.657 .

Return on Capital Emploved fa/b) % -115% -41% 64% |Due to huge loss in current year

»i} Returm on Investment {ROI) :

Return or Profit or Earninas (a) Rs in Eakhs |NA NA

Sharehoiders fund (b} Rs in Eakhs

Return on Investment {a/b) %




